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OLYMPIC VALLEY 

PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT 

OVPSD-OVMWC EMERGENCY INTERTIE PROJECT 

 
DATE: March 26, 2024 
 
TO: District Board Members 
 
FROM: Dave Hunt, District Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Construction Contract Award to Longo Incorporated  
 
BACKGROUND:  The Olympic Valley Public Service District (District) - Olympic Valley Mutual Water 

Company (Mutual) Emergency Intertie Project includes the construction of a 
pressure reducing valve (PRV) station and a booster pump station (BPS) that will 
interconnect the two water systems.  The PRV will be adjacent to Olympic Valley Rd. 
and the Olympic Valley bike trail, at the intersection of Russell Rd.  The new facility 
will include a 6’x11’ concrete vault with a PRV and appurtenant pipe and valves, and 
approximately 100 linear feet of waterline to connect the water systems.  The BPS 
will be constructed within the Mutual’s existing Wellhouse #1 and approximately 125 
linear feet of waterline will be constructed to connect the water systems in the 
Palisades Tahoe paved parking area within a waterline easement.  This project will 
enhance reliability in both water systems during emergency events such as power 
outages, water supply contamination, mechanical well failures, fires, and other 
unforeseeable events that would result in an interruption of service. 

DISCUSSION: The District put the Project out to bid on February 26, 2024.  A pre-bid meeting was 
held on March 13, 2024, and was attended by four (4) contractors and (1) electrical 
subcontractor.  Bids were opened on March 19, 2024.  The District received three (3) 
acceptable bids and one (1) non-responsive bid for the project.  The bid results are 
as follows: 

• Longo Incorporated - $596,575 

• Farr Construction - $802,105 

• RaPiD Construction - $866,698 

A non-responsive bid was received from Goodrich Excavation with a base bid of 
$524,925.  The Goodrich bid did not include all required bid documents, specifically 
a Bid Bond and project experience and references. 
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The Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Cost for construction of the Project was 
$589,490. 

Staff has reviewed the proposals and spoken with project references and 
determined that the lowest responsible bidder, Longo Incorporated, meets all 
the requirements in the contract documents and is well qualified to perform the 
work for the District. 

 The award of the construction contract is contingent upon successful execution of a 
waterline easement to be granted to the Mutual from Alterra Mountain Company 
for the waterline portion of the BPS.   

A Notice of Award will be issued following successful execution of a waterline 
easement, anticipated to be in early April.  A Notice to Proceed will be issued after 
the signed Agreement, bonds, and insurance are submitted to the District.  The 
Contract Documents specify that the Project will be constructed between May 1 
and October 15, 2024. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve the bid proposal from Longo Incorporated and authorize the 

Interim General Manager to execute all contractual documents, 
contingent upon successful execution of waterline easement granted to 
the Mutual from Alterra Mountain Company. 

 2. Do not approve the proposal from Longo Incorporated. 

FISCAL/RESOURCE IMPACTS:  The Project will be funded from the Water Capital account, offset 
by a grant received from PCWA’s FAP for $404,000 and contributions from the 
Mutual though the Emergency Intertie and Mutual Aid Agreement with the 
District  The project is accounted for in the FY24 and FY25 budgets, and the total 
project cost including design and construction is within the budgeted amount.  

RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends approval of the bid proposal from Longo 
Incorporated and recommends the Interim General Manager be authorized to 
execute a contract with Longo Incorporated in an amount not to exceed 
$596,575, as well as an additional contingency amount not to exceed $50,000 to 
cover costs which may be incurred due to unforeseen circumstances during 
construction.  Execution of contract documents will be contingent successful 
execution of waterline easement to be granted to the Mutual from Alterra 
Mountain Company 

ATTACHMENTS:  

• Bid Tabulation 

• DOWL Recommendation of Award 

• Bid Proposal – Longo Incorporated 

 
DATE PREPARED:  March 20, 2024 

 



BID OPENING FORM

Olympic Valley Public Service District

OVPSD-OVMWC Emergency Intertie

Bid Opening Location:

Date:

Time:

Owner:

Engineer:

Bid Packet Incomplete

Bid Item Description Quantity Units Unit Price Total  UNIT PRICE  TOTAL  UNIT PRICE  TOTAL  UNIT PRICE  TOTAL  UNIT PRICE  TOTAL AVER UNIT PRICE AVER TOTAL MED UNIT PRICE MED TOTAL

1 Mobilization and Demobilization (a) (d) 1                  LS $24,809.25 $24,809.25 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $29,000.00 $29,000.00 $59,700.00 $59,700.00 $80,648.00 $80,648.00 $19,316.44 $19,316.44 $44,350.00 $44,350.00

2 Temporary Traffic Control (b) (d) 1                  LS $7,442.78 $7,442.78 $52,500.00 $52,500.00 $61,600.00 $61,600.00 $29,600.00 $29,600.00 $55,000.00 $55,000.00 $22,077.78 $22,077.78 $53,750.00 $53,750.00

3 Temporary Erosion Control (b) (d) 1                  LS $7,442.78 $7,442.78 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $18,400.00 $18,400.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $7,933.33 $7,933.33 $16,700.00 $16,700.00

4 Connection to Existing Water Main (d) 4                  EA $12,000.00 $48,000.00 $8,000.00 $32,000.00 $9,500.00 $38,000.00 $14,900.00 $59,600.00 $15,000.00 $60,000.00 $11,850.00 $47,400.00 $12,200.00 $48,800.00

5 6-Inch DIP Water Main 100              EA $300.00 $30,000.00 $145.00 $14,500.00 $240.00 $24,000.00 $404.00 $40,400.00 $350.00 $35,000.00 $284.75 $28,475.00 $295.00 $29,500.00

6 3-Inch DIP Water Main 125              EA $200.00 $25,000.00 $115.00 $14,375.00 $160.00 $20,000.00 $628.00 $78,500.00 $550.00 $68,750.00 $363.25 $45,406.25 $355.00 $44,375.00

7 12-Inch Gate Valve 1                  EA $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,500.00 $10,500.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00

8 6-Inch Gate Valve 2                  EA $2,750.00 $5,500.00 $8,500.00 $17,000.00 $4,500.00 $9,000.00 $4,400.00 $8,800.00 $3,500.00 $7,000.00 $5,225.00 $10,450.00 $4,450.00 $8,900.00

9 4-Inch Gate Valve 2                  LF $2,000.00 $4,000.00 $7,000.00 $14,000.00 $3,750.00 $7,500.00 $3,900.00 $7,800.00 $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $4,287.50 $8,575.00 $3,825.00 $7,650.00

10 3-Inch Gate Valve 2                  LF $1,500.00 $3,000.00 $8,000.00 $16,000.00 $2,850.00 $5,700.00 $4,800.00 $9,600.00 $3,500.00 $7,000.00 $4,787.50 $9,575.00 $4,150.00 $8,300.00

11 Asphalt Trench Patch (8" AC / 8" AB) 73                LF $45.00 $3,285.00 $225.00 $16,425.00 $225.00 $16,425.00 $460.00 $33,580.00 $350.00 $25,550.00 $315.00 $22,995.00 $287.50 $20,987.50

12 Asphalt Trench Patch (3" AC / 8" AB) 175              EA $40.00 $7,000.00 $175.00 $30,625.00 $94.00 $16,450.00 $291.00 $50,925.00 $110.00 $19,250.00 $167.50 $29,312.50 $142.50 $24,937.50

13 PRV (c) 1                  EA $120,000.00 $120,000.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00 $105,600.00 $105,600.00 $112,900.00 $112,900.00 $160,000.00 $160,000.00 $113,375.00 $113,375.00 $109,250.00 $109,250.00

14 PRV - Electrical 1                  EA $81,400.00 $81,400.00 $70,000.00 $70,000.00 $88,500.00 $88,500.00 $102,800.00 $102,800.00 $115,000.00 $115,000.00 $94,075.00 $94,075.00 $95,650.00 $95,650.00

15 BPS Construction (c) 1                  EA $130,000.00 $130,000.00 $85,000.00 $85,000.00 $87,600.00 $87,600.00 $103,200.00 $103,200.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $93,950.00 $93,950.00 $93,800.00 $93,800.00

16 BPS - Electrical 1                  EA $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $24,500.00 $24,500.00 $34,200.00 $34,200.00 $29,500.00 $29,500.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $30,800.00 $30,800.00 $31,850.00 $31,850.00

17 2-Inch Blow Off Valve Assembly 3                  LF $6,000.00 $18,000.00 $10,000.00 $30,000.00 $6,500.00 $19,500.00 $4,100.00 $12,300.00 $6,500.00 $19,500.00 $6,775.00 $20,325.00 $6,500.00 $19,500.00

18 Non-Excavatable Rock (Contingent) 5                  EA $800.00 $4,000.00 $3,000.00 $15,000.00 $2,000.00 $10,000.00 $1,100.00 $5,500.00 $500.00 $2,500.00 $1,650.00 $8,250.00 $1,550.00 $7,750.00

ALT #4A Connection to Existing Water Main - HOT TAP (d) 2                  EA $22,000.00 $44,000.00 $7,500.00 $15,000.00 $9,500.00 $19,000.00 $14,000.00 $28,000.00 $15,000.00 $30,000.00 $11,500.00 $23,000.00 $11,750.00 $23,500.00
ALT 4B Connection to Existing Water Main (d) 2                  EA $12,000.00 $24,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $9,500.00 $19,000.00 $16,500.00 $33,000.00 $15,000.00 $30,000.00 $11,500.00 $23,000.00 $12,250.00 $24,500.00

Base Bid Total:

Bid Alt Total:
Eng Base Bid Est + 10% ContingencyRANK 6 7 8 9

PERCENTAGE OF ENGINEER'S BASE BID ESTIMATE 98% 111% 144% 156% 116% 126%

PERCENTAGE OF ENGINEER'S BASE + 10% CONTINGENCY 89% 101% 131% 142% 105% 114%

$589,490.00

$678,200.00

$836,698.00

$60,000.00

Rapid Construction

$647,474.86

$674,550.00

AVERAGE MEDIAN

$620,791.31

$68,000.00 $25,000.00 $38,000.00 $61,000.00

PlanetBids

Olympic Valley Public Service District

DOWL

Tuesday, March 19, 2024

ENGINEER'S OPINION OF 

PROBABLE COST

2:00 PM

$535,900.00 $771,605.00

Goodrich Excavation Longo, Inc.

$524,925.00 $596,575.00

RDC
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March 20, 2024 
 
Dave Hunt, P.E. 
District Engineer 
305 Olympic Valley Road 
Olympic Valley, CA 
 
 
Re: Recommendation of Award for Longo, Inc 

 
Mr. Dave Hunt,  
 
On March 19th, 2024, DOWL held a bid opening for the Olympic Valley PSD – MWC Emergency Intertie 
project on behalf of Olympic Valley Public Service District.  Bid information was compiled and Longo, 
Inc is the most responsive and responsible low bidder with a base bid price of $596,575. 
 
DOWL has evaluated the Longo, Inc Bid and finds that it complies with the prescribed requirements of the 
Bid Form, and therefore is considered “responsive”.  We have also performed a due diligence check on the 
company by checking provided references.  The references were all positive and consisted of work that 
pertains to this proposed project. Longo, Inc has also worked with the PSD in the past, and successfully 
completed the Hidden Lake Loop project in 2022. 
 
Other Bidders included Goodrich, Farr Construction, and RaPiD Construction. Goodrich was originally the 
lowest bidder, but after review, did not submit a Bid Bond for a complete packet. Goodrich also provided 
references that did not sufficiently prove that they had completed a job of this scope or would be able to. 
The other two bidders were unnecessary high at nearly 30% more than Longo, Inc.  
 
Based on a review of their bid and background check, DOWL finds Longo, Inc as being a “responsible” 
Bidder and we recommend awarding them the Construction Contract. 
 
I have attached the Bid Tab of all bids and Bid Form submittal from Longo, Inc for your reference. 
 
If you have any questions or require additional information regarding this letter, please feel free to contact 
me. 
 
Regards, 
 

 

 

 

Travis Marshall 
Project Engineer 
 
Attached: PlanetBids bid opening summary and Bid Tabulation 
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